
 

WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 

 
Our Mission: 

Protect the Public by Ensuring That Gambling is Legal and Honest 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gambling Commission Headquarters 
4565 7th Avenue SE  
Lacey, WA 98503 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSION MEETING 
AGENDA PACKET 

 
 
 

THURSDAY, February 9, 2017  
 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

 
Gambling Commission Headquarters 

4565 7th Ave. SW  4th Floor Conference Room 
Olympia, WA 98503 

 
Please note, agenda items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair 

 
Public Meeting – February 9, 2017 

 
 

10:30 AM 
 
Staff Available to Stakeholders                                                     Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
                                                                                                            Amy Hunter, Deputy Director 

 
11:00 

 

 
Welcome                                                                                                           Bud Sizemore, Chair 

 
Tab 1 

 

 
Director’s Report                                                                                       David Trujillo, Director 

• January 12, 2017 Minutes                                                                                                                                                            
• New Licenses and Class III Employees 
• Class III Employees/Snoqualmie 

 
Legislative Update                               Brian Considine, Managing Attorney, Legislative Liaison 

• Memo 
 

Tab 2 
 
Success of Online Transactions Rule            Jennifer LaMont, Agent-in-Charge, Licensing Unit 
 

  
Public Comment 
 

  
Meeting Adjourn 
 

  
Executive Session – Working Lunch 
Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations and Litigation 

 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3447. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 
January Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 

The Red Lion  
2300 Evergreen Park Drive SW 

Olympia, WA 98502 
January 12, 2017 

 
Commissioners Present:      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Chris Stearns  
Ed Troyer  
Kelsey Gray, PhD. 
Julia Patterson 
 
Ex Officios Present: 
Senator Steve Conway 
 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Director, Amy Hunter, Deputy Director, Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Brian Considine, Managing Attorney/Legal Liaison, Haylee Mills, Staff Attorney, Julie Lies, 
Tribal Liaison, John Meader, Assistant Attorney General, Heather Songer, Public Information 
Officer, Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 
-Public Meeting-                                                                                                   

Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone to the Red Lion in Olympia. He called the meeting of the 
Washington State Gambling Commission to order at 11:05 a.m. on January 12, 2017 and 
immediately went into Executive Session where the Commissioners discussed Pending 
Investigations, Tribal Negotiations and Litigation.  
 
The public meeting reconvened at 2:05 pm.  
 
The Chair welcomed everyone back to the meeting and introductions were made. There were 
about 25 people in attendance.  
 
Director’s Report:   
Director Trujillo reported the Lacey Headquarters was not moving at this time. He announced 
the agency had signed a lease extension. He introduced the Gambling Commission’s newest staff 
member Haylee Mills, Staff Attorney. Haylee started at the Gambling Commission in November 
2016. She is a Utah native, and attended both college and law school at the University of 
Utah. Following a judicial clerkship in Federal District Court, she opened her own firm in 2010 
where she succeeded at criminal defense and a general civil practice.  In 2015, she took a job as a 
deputy prosecutor in Pacific County, Washington. Welcome Haylee.   
 
 



2 
 

Tab 1a  
Consent Agenda 
November Minutes/New Licensees  
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the first two items under the Director’s report as 
presented. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Class III certifications for the Snoqualmie 
Tribe as presented. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
Commissioner Stearns abstained from the vote for Snoqualmie Tribe.   
The motion passed. 4:0 
 
Tab 1b 
Legislative Report 
Haylee Mills presented the legislative report to the Commissioners. Commissioners unanimously 
voted to oppose House Bill 1016. HB 1016, requires a finding of guilt before forfeiture of 
unlawful gambling equipment, property and/or proceeds seized under RCW 9.46.231 could 
occur.  [This bill would apply to the Gambling Commission, as well as to other law enforcement 
agencies].  

Commissioner Patterson moved that the Washington State Gambling Commission take a 
position against HB 1016 based on the concerns raised by staff.  We feel we have 
appropriately pursued civil seizures/forfeitures and ask this be conveyed. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
Opposition letter was presented to Chair Jenkins on January 18, 2017. 
 
Tab 1c Default 
Haylee Mills presented the materials for this tab.   

Commissioner Gray moved to revoke the Card Room License for Rasy M. Eng. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to revoke the Card Room License for Megan Ky. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 5:0 
  
Commissioner Gray moved to revoke the Class III Certification for Lalith P. Mulatiyana. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained from the vote. 
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke the Class III Certification for Stewart G. Robertson. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 



3 
 

The motion passed. 5:0 
 
Tab 1c 
Fee Restructure Work Group Update 
Deputy Director Hunter gave a recap of the two Fee Restructure Work Group meetings that 
occurred in November. No other meetings are currently scheduled. There was no public 
comment. 
 
Tab 2 
Petition from the Recreational Gaming Association (Final Action) 
Promotions 
WAC 230-06-030 Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions 
WAC 230-06-031 Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund raising events, or 
gambling activities- Promotional Contests of Chance (PCOC)  
Assistant Director Griffin presented the materials for this tab. There was no comment from the 
petitioner or the Commissioners.  
Commissioner Troyer moved to approve version 3 of WAC 230-06-030 and the original 
version of WAC 230-06-031, effective 31 days from filing. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
Tab 3 
Petition from Warren Montney (Final Action) 
Restrictions and Conditions for Gambling Promotions 
WAC 230-15-353 Using match play coupons in nonhouse-banked card rooms. 
WAC 230-15-453 Using match play or similar coupons in gambling promotions. 
Assistant Director Griffin presented the materials for this tab. There was no comment from the 
petitioner or the Commissioners.  
Commissioner Troyer moved to approve the new WAC 230-15-353 and the amended WAC 
230-15-453, effective 31 days from filing.  
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Chair Sizemore reminded the audience the next Gambling Commission meeting would be held at 
the Red Lion, February 9th.  And the Commission would still meet even though it would be a 
light agenda. Commissioner Patterson will not be at the February meeting and Commissioner 
Gray will be calling in.  
Director Trujillo reminded everyone of our social media presence and asked the audience to 
follow us on Instagram, Twitter and Facebook. 
 
The February Commission Meeting will be held at Gambling Commission Headquarters.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 3:12 PM. 











































 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 
 
 

February 2, 2017 

 

 

 

TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  

         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  

  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Representative Brandon Vick 

Kelsey Gray, Ph. D.     

   Christopher Stearns     

   Ed Troyer 

      

FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Managing Attorney/Legislative Liaison  

 

SUBJECT:  LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   

 

We are already into the fourth week of the 2017 session.  The following legislative cutoffs will 

occur between our February and March Commission Meetings:  

 Friday, February 17, 2017 - Policy committee cutoff; 

 Friday, February 24, 2017 - Fiscal committee cutoff; and  

 Wednesday, March 8, 2017 - Last day bills can be considered in its house of origin. 

 

I have attached the full cutoff calendar and a list of bills we are tracking so far this session.  

Below is a summary of noteworthy bills we are currently tracking.   

 

Agency Request Legislation 

 

1. HB 1274 / SB 5190, Concerning the voting member requirement for charitable and 

nonprofit organizations 

HB 1274 and SB 5190 were prime sponsored by Representative Sawyer, Chair of Commerce 

and Gaming, and Senator Conway, respectively.  HB 1274 received a hearing in Commerce 

and Gaming on January 23, 2017 and was passed out to Rules on January 26, 2017. 

 

SB 5190 had a hearing in Commerce, Labor, and Sports on January 19, 2017 and was passed 

out to Rules the same day.  We are in the process of getting the bills from Rules onto the 

House and Senate floors for consideration and passage. 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

2 

 

2. HB 1475 / SB 5582, Clarifying the limited authority of gambling commission officers 

HB 1475 and SB 5582 were prime sponsored by Representative Irwin and Senator 

Honeyford, respectively.  HB 1475 had a hearing in Judiciary on Tuesday, January 31, 2017.  

Deputy Director and I testified in favor of our agency request bill.  There was no opposition 

and Fraternal Order of Police did not testify but signed in supporting the bill. 

 

SB 5582 was referred to Commerce, Labor, and Sports on January 30, 2017.  We have 

requested that Senator Baumgartner, Chair of the Committee, hold a hearing on the bill and 

pass the bill out of committee.  No hearing has been scheduled at this time. 

 

 

Bills with Direct Gambling Impacts. 

 

3. SB 5169, Authorizing fantasy sports contests as contests of skill 

Senator Ericksen’s SB 5169 defines fantasy sports as games of skill and excludes them from 

Washington’s gambling laws. This is the same bill Senator Ericksen brought forward last 

year (SB 6333).    

 

SB 5169 received a hearing in Commerce, Labor and Sports on January 18, 2017.  

Commissioner Stearns and I testified neutral at the hearing informing the Committee that 

you had not taken a position at this time.  We also provided information of some national 

trends that are emerging and general issues the Commission and state might face related to 

the bill.  Rob McKenna for the fantasy sports trade associations testified in support of the 

bill. 

 

The bill has not been schedule for executive action and we do not expect it to be scheduled 

for a vote at this time.    

 

4. SB 5506, concerning the transfer of firearms at nonprofit fundraisers 

Senator Zeiger’s SB 5506 creates a new exemption to the firearm background check statute 

for the transfer of possession of a firearm between individuals while conducting nonprofit 

fund-raising activities. It includes but is not limited to auctions, raffles, and contests.  The 

bill does not amend the gambling act but would allow firearms to be auctioned at nonprofit 

gambling activities without a background check. 

 

The bill is scheduled for a hearing in Law and Justice on January 31, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

3 

 

Bills Impacting Agency’s Adjudicative or Rule-making Authority 

 

5. SB 5211, Addressing adjudicative proceedings by state agencies 

Senator Wilson’s SB 5211 requires that administrative hearing presiding officers, OAH as it 

relates to the Commission, issue final orders in administrative cases. It also prohibits ex 

parte contact between the presiding officer and head of an agency—here Commissioners or 

Director/Deputy Director.  This is similar to SSB 6019 that was passed by the Senate but 

died in the House.  SB 5211 received a hearing in Law and Justice on January 24, 2017.  It is 

unclear if it will be passed out of committee.  

 

This bill will remove the Commissioners from having final decision-making authority in 

administrative cases unless the agency were to hire its own in-house administrative law 

judge, which is not cost effective.  If you have concerns about losing your final decision-

making authority in administrative cases, then I recommend you vote to oppose the bill. 

 

6. SB 5350, Establishing deadlines for administrative final orders  

Senator Fortunato’s SB 5350 requires an agency to issue a final order in administrative cases 

within two years after the agency receives a challenge to its administrative action.  A party 

may appeal the administrative action to superior court if a final order is not issued within the 

two-year period.  The parties are allowed to waive the two-year requirement if all parties 

consent.  This bill is similar to SB 6464 that made it out of the Senate but died in the House.  

 

SB 5350 received a hearing in Law and Justice on January 25, 2017 and is scheduled for 

executive session on February 1, 2017.  I will provide you an update on its status at the 

February meeting, but this bill does not appear to severely impact the agency at this time. 

 

7. HB 1120, Concerning the regulatory fairness act 

Representative Short’s HB 1120 is a result of the Auditor’s audit looking at Small Business 

Economic Impact Statements (SBEIS) required under the Regulatory Fairness Act (RFA).   

 

Agencies are required by the RFA to complete and file SBEIS if a rule an agency is adopting 

will impose more than minor costs on small businesses and the agency must consider certain 

mitigation solutions identified in statute, where legal and feasible, if the rule will have a 

disproportionate economic impact on small businesses. 

 

HB 1120 provides that: an SBEIS is not required if a proposed rule does not affect small 

businesses; an SBEIS to consider all mitigation solutions outlines in statute if the rule only 

affects small businesses; an agency to mitigate costs to small businesses even when it does 

not have sufficient data to calculate disproportionate impacts; and the Officer of Regulatory 

Innovation and Assistance (ORIA) will act to provide agencies with online tools and 

information so that agencies can better meeting their RFA/SBEIS obligations.  



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

4 

 

 

HB 1120, Concerning the regulatory fairness act (continued) 

The bill received a hearing Technology and Economic Development on January 18, 2017 

and it is scheduled for executive action that will likely occur this week.  The agency was one 

of several agencies involved in the audit, and we have been part of a Governor’s general 

government work group on this legislation.  The Governor’s Office supports the bill and is 

assisting in coordinating a uniform response to the bill to ensure the bill meets its objective 

without any unintended consequences to us or any other state agency. 

 

 

Law Enforcement Bills 

 

8. HB 1529, HB 1769, and SB 5073, Use of Deadly Force Bills 

Representative Ryu’s HB 1529, Representative Goodman’s HB 1769, and Senator Frockt’s 

SB 5073 are results from ESHB 2908’s Joint Legislative Taskforce on police use of deadly 

force convened over the interim.  The Taskforce issued a 91-page report in December 2016, 

and agreed upon 15 recommendations in the areas of: deadly force statute; accountability, 

training and community outreach; data collection; less lethal weapons; racial bias, behavior 

health; and funding/oversight/training. 

 

HB 1529 and HB 1769 are scheduled for hearings on January 31, 2017.  SB 5073 is 

scheduled for a hearing on February 2, 2017.  HB 1529 and SB 5073 are companion bills.  

The bills remove the malice and good faith provisions in the deadly force criminal statute.  

This would allow a law enforcement officer to be prosecuted under a lower criminal 

standard – no liability if a reasonable officer would have believed that the use of deadly 

force was necessary in light of all the facts and circumstances known to the officer at the 

time.  The bills also require: independent criminal investigations for all instances where 

deadly force results in a death or substantial bodily harm; additional data collection on uses 

of deadly force; WASPC program focusing on less lethal weapon program; expanded 

prohibition on racial profiling; studying disparate impact on minority communities; WSIPP 

study to increase diversity among law enforcement officers; workgroup to develop model 

policies allowing for meaningful community input; and additional funding for training 

through CJTC.  Other than the change to the criminal use of deadly force statute, most other 

aspects of the bill are subject to appropriation if they are to be implemented. 

 

HB 1769 requires law enforcement agencies to report certain data on deadly force incidents 

to the Attorney General’s Office; establishes a grant program to assist local agencies in 

acquiring less lethal weapons; requires CJTC to provide enhanced leadership training; 

requires CJTC to provide enhanced crisis intervention training (40 hours) to fifty percent of 

all general authority peace officers assigned to patrol duties; creates financial grant awards 

for jails and local agencies receiving comprehensive accreditation; requires study on how to  



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

5 

 

HB 1529, HB 1769, and SB 5073, Use of Deadly Force Bills (continued) 

increase law enforcement diversity; creates a WASPC grant program to foster law 

enforcement and community engagement; and directs certain court revenues into the Public 

Safety Enhancement Account to fund programs under the bill. 

 

I will provide any updates to you at the February Commission Meeting.  However, there is 

no recommendation to take a position on any of these bills at this time. 

 

9. SB 5038 / HB 1390, Concerning disclosures regarding incentivized evidence and 

testimony 

Senator Padden’s SB 5038 sets forth requirements on how and when a prosecutor must give a 

defendant advance notice and specific detailed information about any potential informant 

testimony, including any benefit the informant receives in exchange for her or his testimony.   

 

SB 5038 received a hearing in Law and Justice on January 25, 2017 and was passed to Rules 

on January 26, 2017.  HB 1390 has not been scheduled for a hearing at this time.  This bill 

could impact agency criminal operations.  However, we are satisfied that the Washington 

Association of Prosecuting Attorneys (WAPA) opposition to the legislation identifies our 

concerns with the bill and we understand they are seeking amendments to the bill, if it 

continues through the process.  We will continue to talk with stakeholders and legislators 

about the impact of this bill to our agency if it gains momentum in the next few weeks. 

 

10. HB 1016, Concerning seizure and forfeiture of property 

Representative Taylor’s HB 1016 requires the agency to obtain a felony conviction against 

each person who had property seized by the agency under the Gambling Act before the 

agency could forfeit it.  It also institutes a higher standard limiting forfeiture to only property 

the court finds is directly involved in, connected with, traceable to, or derived from the 

felony offense committed by the property owner. 

 

HB 1016 had a hearing in Judiciary on January 11, 2017 and was scheduled for executive 

action the following week.  The Commission voted to oppose the bill, and that opposition 

letter (attached) was delivered to the prime sponsor and Chair of the Committee.  I also spoke 

with the prime sponsor and other members of the committee and they agreed to have an 

amendment striking us from the bill.  However, the bill was pulled from consideration and 

has not been rescheduled for a vote.  Thus, it is likely dead at this time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

6 

 

 

Public Meeting / Public Disclosure Bills 

 

11. HB 1160 / SB 5418, Sunshine Committee recommendations for Public Records 

exemptions 

Representative Springer’s HB 1160 and Senator Chase’s SB 5418 are the Sunshine 

Committees recommendations amending and/or adding to Public Records Act exemptions.  

HB 1160 received a hearing in State Government, Elections, and Information Technology on 

January 25, 2017 and is set for executive action on January 31, 2017.  SB 5418 has yet to be 

scheduled for a hearing.  The Attorney General’s Office also supports these bills 

 

These bills would impact the agency, but most of the exemptions are helpful to the agency.  

Thus, these they do not appear to cause us any concerns at this time.  We will continue to 

analyze the bills and talk with agency partners to ensure there are no unintended 

consequences. 

 

Legislative Work Sessions 

 

12. Agency staff has been asked to present information at three work sessions this legislative 

session.  The House Commerce and Gaming Committee held two work sessions on January 

9 and January 24, 2017.  The first work session presented an agency overview to the 

committee and the second work session discussed an overview of Tribal gaming in the state, 

including our role in compact negotiations. 

 

The Senate Commerce, Labor, and Sports Committee held an online poker work session on 

January 18, 2017.  Commissioner Stearns assisted staff in this presentation.  The agency 

discussed current state and federal law related on internet gambling and online poker.  We 

also provided information about other intrastate regulation in New Jersey, Nevada, and 

Delaware. 

 

 

 

Attachments 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 
 
January 18, 2017 
 
The Honorable Laurie Jinkins 
Chair, Judiciary Committee 
308 John L. O'Brien Building 
P.O. Box 40600 
Olympia, WA 98504 
 
SUBJECT:  Opposition of HB 1016 – Finding of Guilt for Property Forfeiture 
   
Dear Chair Jinkins: 
 
The Washington State Gambling Commission voted to oppose House Bill 1016 at its most recent 
meeting on January 12, 2017.  HB 1016, Section 1, imposes an unprecedented standard in the state 
for the forfeiture of unlawful gambling equipment, property and/or proceeds seized under RCW 
9.46.231.  
 
This bill requires the Gambling Commission to obtain a felony conviction against each person it 
seizes illegal gambling equipment, property and proceeds from before it can forfeit the property.  The 
Legislature has charged the Gambling Commission with keeping the criminal element out of 
gambling through strict regulation and control.  One of the main tools we have to fulfill this mission 
is the seizure and forfeiture law in the Gambling Act. Many times, the Gambling Commission is 
unable to get a felony conviction against each person we seize illegal gambling equipment, property, 
and/or proceeds from. This occurs because people disappear or do not claim the property knowing 
that a claim would necessitate criminal charges brought against them.   
 
We need the standard to remain unchanged in the Gambling Act. Seizure and forfeiture of illegal 
gambling equipment and proceeds allows us to keep the criminal element out of gambling. This bill 
will severely constrain if not prevent the Gambling Commission from fulfilling its duty.  Therefore, 
we strongly encourage the Committee to take no action on the bill or, at the very least, adopt an 
amendment striking Section 1 entirely.   
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (253) 951-5090 or Director Dave 
Trujillo (360) 486-3512. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Bud Sizemore 
Commission Chair 
 
cc: Sen. Steve Conway 
 Rep. Brandon Vick 



BILL TITLE STATUS DATE 
BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION 

COMPANION 

BILLS 
LATEST CMTE MTG INFO 

SPONSOR 

(COMBINED) 

HB 

1000 

Law 

enforcement 

deadly force 

H Public 

Safety 

1/9/201

7 

Concerning the use 

of deadly force by 

law enforcement and 

corrections officers. 

SB 5000(SLaw 

& Justice) 

  Doglio 

HB 

1005 

Agency rule-

making 

authority 

H State 

Governme 

1/9/201

7 

Creating 

accountability in 

agency rule-making 

authority. 

    Taylor 

HB 

1016 

Private 

property 

forfeiture 

H 

Judiciary 

1/9/201

7 

Requiring a finding 

of guilt prior to the 

forfeiture of private 

property. 

  Jan 11 Public hearing in the 

House Committee on Judiciary 

at 8:00 AM. 

Taylor 

HB 

1120 

Regulatory 

fairness act 

H Tech & 

Econ D 

1/12/20

17 

Concerning the 

regulatory fairness 

act. 

  Jan 26 Executive session 

scheduled, but no action was 

taken in the House Committee 

on Technology & Economic 

Development at 1:30 PM. 

Smith 

HB 

1159 

Employmnt 

after govt 

service 

H State 

Governme 

1/12/20

17 

Concerning 

employment after 

public service in 

state government. 

SB 5120(SState 

Governme) 

Jan 31 Scheduled for executive 

session in the House Committee 

on State Government and 

Elections & Information 

Technology at 9:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Pellicciotti 

HB 

1160 

Sunshine 

committee 

H State 

Governme 

1/12/20

17 

Enacting 

recommendations of 

the sunshine 

committee. 

SB 5418(SState 

Governme) 

Jan 31 Scheduled for executive 

session in the House Committee 

on State Government and 

Elections & Information 

Technology at 9:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Springer 



HB 

1193 

Fourth 

amendment/fed

eral gov 

H 

Judiciary 

1/13/20

17 

Creating the Fourth 

Amendment 

protection act. 

    Taylor 

HB 

1207 

St agency-fed 

govt agreemnts 

H Approps 1/13/20

17 

Requiring 

agreements between 

state agencies and 

the federal 

government to be 

reported to the 

legislature. 

    Young 

HB 

1240 

JARRC/agency 

rule making 

H State 

Governme 

1/13/20

17 

Revising the 

responsibilities of the 

joint administrative 

rules review 

committee to 

increase legislative 

oversight of agency 

rule making. 

    Koster 

HB 

1241 

Agency rule 

making 

H State 

Governme 

1/13/20

17 

Increasing legislative 

oversight of agency 

rule making. 

    Koster 

HB 

1274 

Gambling/org. 

membership 

H Rules R 1/30/20

17 

Concerning the 

member requirement 

for bona fide 

charitable or 

nonprofit 

organizations. 

SB 5190(SRules 

2) 

Jan 26 Executive action taken in 

the House Committee on 

Commerce & Gaming at 9:00 

AM. 

Sawyer 

HB 

1276 

Health care 3-

part aim sol. 

H 

HC/Welln

ess 

1/16/20

17 

Creating a pilot 

project to test a 

three-part aim 

solution that 

improves health and 

health care in a 

manner that lowers 

  Jan 27 Public hearing in the 

House Committee on Health 

Care & Wellness at 10:00 AM. 

Rodne 



overall health care 

costs in a normally 

distributed 

population. 

HB 

1287 

Collective 

bargaining 

H Labor & 

Workpla 

1/16/20

17 

Addressing 

collective 

bargaining. 

    Chandler 

HB 

1288 

St retirement 

syst employers 

H Approps 1/16/20

17 

Additional 

contribution rates for 

contributions made 

after the date the 

service is rendered 

for individual 

employers of the 

Washington state 

retirement systems. 

  Jan 26 Public hearing in the 

House Committee on 

Appropriations at 3:30 PM. 

Chandler 

HB 

1298 

Job 

applicants/arres

ts, etc. 

H Labor & 

Workpl 

1/16/20

17 

Prohibiting 

employers from 

asking about arrests 

or convictions before 

an applicant is 

determined 

otherwise qualified 

for a position. 

  Jan 30 Executive action taken in 

the House Committee on Labor 

& Workplace Standards at 1:30 

PM. 

Ortiz-Self 

HB 

1317 

GPS data 

disclosure 

H State 

Governme 

1/17/20

17 

Concerning the 

public disclosure of 

global positioning 

system data 

corresponding to 

residential addresses 

of public employees 

and volunteers. 

SB 5207(SState 

Governme) 

Jan 31 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the House Committee 

on State Government and 

Elections & Information 

Technology at 9:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

McBride 



HB 

1323 

Loss 

prevention 

reviews 

H State 

Governme 

1/17/20

17 

Concerning loss 

prevention reviews 

by state agencies. 

SB 5173(SState 

Governme) 

Jan 31 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the House Committee 

on State Government and 

Elections & Information 

Technology at 9:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Wylie 

HB 

1352 

Small business 

owners 

H State 

Governme 

1/18/20

17 

Concerning licensing 

and regulatory 

requirements of 

small business 

owners. 

SB 5230(SWays 

& Means) 

  Barkis 

HB 

1390 

Incentivized 

evidence discl. 

H 

Judiciary 

1/18/20

17 

Concerning 

disclosures regarding 

incentivized 

evidence and 

testimony. 

SB 5038(SRules 

2) 

  Gregerson 

HB 

1398 

Law 

enforcement/ha

te crime 

H Public 

Safety 

1/19/20

17 

Making crimes and 

threats against 

persons because of 

their occupation as a 

law enforcement 

officer a hate crime. 

SB 5280(SLaw 

& Justice) 

  McCabe 

HB 

1417 

OPMA/IT 

security matters 

H State 

Governme

n 

1/19/20

17 

Concerning the 

harmonization of the 

open public meetings 

act with the public 

records act in 

relation to 

information 

technology security 

matters. 

  Jan 31 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the House Committee 

on State Government and 

Elections & Information 

Technology at 9:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Hudgins 

HB 

1421 

Sensitive 

data/st. 

networks 

H State 

Governme 

1/19/20

17 

Concerning the 

removal of payment 

credentials and other 

  Feb 1 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the House Committee 

on State Government and 

Smith 



sensitive data from 

state data networks. 

Elections & Information 

Technology at 1:30 PM. 

(Subject to change) 

HB 

1475 

Gambling 

commission 

officers 

H 

Judiciary 

1/20/20

17 

Clarifying the 

limited authority of 

gambling 

commission officers. 

SB 

5582(SCom/Lab

or/Spor) 

Jan 31 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the House Committee 

on Judiciary at 10:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Irwin 

HB 

1479 

State IT 

systems 

encryption 

H State 

Governme 

1/20/20

17 

Concerning 

encryption of data on 

state information 

technology systems. 

  Feb 3 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the House Committee 

on State Government and 

Elections & Information 

Technology at 10:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Hudgins 

HB 

1516 

Public records 

storage sys. 

H State 

Governme

n 

1/23/20

17 

Creating a data 

storage system for 

holding and making 

public records 

available to the 

public. 

    MacEwen 

HB 

1529 

Use of deadly 

force 

H Public 

Safety 

1/23/20

17 

Concerning 

recommendations 

from the joint 

legislative task force 

on the use of deadly 

force in community 

policing. 

SB 5073(SLaw 

& Justice) 

Jan 31 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the House Committee 

on Public Safety at 1:30 PM. 

(Subject to change) 

Ryu 

HB 

1533 

Wage and 

salary 

information 

H Labor & 

Workpl 

1/23/20

17 

Addressing wage and 

salary information. 

SB 

5555(SCom/Lab

or/Spor) 

Jan 30 Executive action taken in 

the House Committee on Labor 

& Workplace Standards at 1:30 

PM. 

Dolan 

HB 

1560 

Retirement 

system defaults 

H Approps 1/23/20

17 

Addressing plan 

membership default 

provisions in the 

public employees' 

  Feb 2 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the House Committee 

on Appropriations at 3:30 PM. 

(Subject to change) 

Stanford 



retirement system, 

the teachers' 

retirement system, 

and the school 

employees' 

retirement system. 

HB 

1587 

Rule-

making/public 

info. 

H State 

Governme 

1/24/20

17 

Concerning public 

information 

concerning agency 

rule-making 

activities. 

    Shea 

HB 

1592 

Firearm dealer 

deliveries 

H 

Judiciary 

1/24/20

17 

Concerning dealer 

deliveries to active 

law enforcement 

officers. 

    Klippert 

HB 

1594 

Public records 

admin. 

H State 

Governme 

1/25/20

17 

Improving public 

records 

administration. 

    McBride 

HB 

1595 

Public records 

request costs 

H State 

Governme 

1/25/20

17 

Concerning costs 

associated with 

responding to public 

records requests. 

    Nealey 

HB 

1657 

Jnt. admin rules 

review comm 

H State 

Govt, Ele 

1/26/20

17 

Concerning 

proceedings of the 

joint administrative 

rules review 

committee. 

SB 5055(SState 

Governme) 

  Shea 

HB 

1658 

Adminstrative 

rules & policy 

H State 

Govt, El 

1/26/20

17 

Limiting the 

enforcement of 

administrative rules 

and policies. 

SB 5616()   Manweller 



HB 

1659 

Law 

interpretation, 

judicial 

H 

Judiciary 

1/26/20

17 

Concerning judicial 

interpretation of law 

and other writings 

without deference to 

agency 

interpretation. 

    Manweller 

HB 

1668 

Crimes against 

law enforce. 

H Public 

Safety 

1/26/20

17 

Enhancing penalties 

for crimes committed 

against law 

enforcement officers. 

    Haler 

HB 

1708 

Retirement 

system opt-out 

H Approps 1/26/20

17 

Allowing new 

government 

employees the option 

of opting out of 

retirement system 

membership if the 

employee is age 

sixty or older when 

first hired, or when 

the employee's 

employer opts into 

retirement plan 

participation. 

SB 5276(SWays 

& Means) 

  Chandler 

HB 

1769 

Deadly force 

task force recs 

H Public 

Safety 

1/27/20

17 

Supporting law 

enforcement's efforts 

to implement the 

recommendations of 

the joint legislative 

task force on the use 

of deadly force in 

community policing. 

  Jan 31 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the House Committee 

on Public Safety at 1:30 PM. 

(Subject to change) 

Goodman 

HB 

1817 

Zero-based 

budget reviews 

H Approps 1/30/20

17 

Improving state 

budgeting through 

SB 5066(SState 

Governme) 

  Stokesbary 



zero-based budget 

reviews. 

HB 

1829 

Disclosure/com

puter networks 

    Concerning the 

exemption from 

public disclosure of 

information 

regarding public and 

private computer and 

telecommunications 

networks. 

    Hudgins 

HJR 

4201 

Electronic 

communication

s 

H 

Judiciary 

1/11/20

17 

Amending the state 

Constitution to 

ensure that electronic 

communications and 

data are secure from 

unreasonable 

searches and 

seizures. 

    Taylor 

SB 

5000 

Law 

enforcement 

deadly force 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/9/201

7 

Concerning the use 

of deadly force by 

law enforcement and 

corrections officers. 

HB 

1000(HPublic 

Safety) 

  McCoy 

SSB 

5038 

Incentivized 

evidence discl. 

S Rules 2 1/26/20

17 

Concerning 

disclosures regarding 

incentivized 

evidence and 

testimony. 

HB 

1390(HJudiciary

) 

Jan 25 Executive action taken in 

the Senate Committee on Law 

& Justice at 8:00 AM. 

LAW(Padden) 

SB 

5044 

Civil forfeiture 

burden 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/11/20

17 

Changing the burden 

of proof in certain 

civil asset forfeiture 

hearings. 

    Hasegawa 

SB 

5046 

Language of 

public notices 

S Local 

Governme 

1/11/20

17 

Providing public 

notices of public 

health, safety, and 

HB 

1540(HPublic 

Safety) 

Jan 17 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on Local 

Government at 1:30 PM. 

Hasegawa 



welfare in a language 

other than English. 

SB 

5055 

Jnt. admin rules 

review comm 

S State 

Governme

n 

1/11/20

17 

Concerning 

proceedings of the 

joint administrative 

rules review 

committee. 

HB 1657(HState 

Govt, El) 

Jan 20 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on State 

Government at 8:00 AM. 

Dansel 

SB 

5056 

Admin 

action/judicial 

review 

S State 

Governme

n 

1/11/20

17 

Modifying 

limitations on new 

evidence taken on 

judicial review of 

administrative 

actions. 

  Jan 20 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on State 

Government at 8:00 AM. 

Dansel 

SB 

5057 

Adjudicative 

proceedings 

S State 

Governme

n 

1/11/20

17 

Authorizing the 

removal of an 

adjudicative 

proceeding to the 

office of 

administrative 

hearings. 

  Jan 20 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on State 

Government at 8:00 AM. 

Dansel 

SB 

5065 

Government 

performance 

S State 

Governme

n 

1/11/20

17 

Concerning 

government 

performance and 

accountability. 

    Miloscia 

SB 

5066 

Zero-based 

budget reviews 

S State 

Governme 

1/11/20

17 

Concerning state 

budgeting through 

zero-based budget 

reviews. 

HB 

1817(HApprops

) 

  Miloscia 

SB 

5073 

Use of deadly 

force 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/11/20

17 

Concerning 

recommendations 

from the joint 

legislative task force 

on the use of deadly 

HB 

1529(HPublic 

Safety) 

Feb 2 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the Senate Committee 

on Law & Justice at 10:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Frockt 



force in community 

policing. 

SB 

5120 

Employmnt 

after govt 

service 

S State 

Governme 

1/13/20

17 

Concerning 

employment after 

public service in 

state government. 

HB 1159(HState 

Governme) 

Jan 25 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on State 

Government at 8:00 AM. 

Carlyle 

SB 

5169 

Fantasy 

sports/skill 

S 

Com/Labo

r/Sport 

1/16/20

17 

Classifying fantasy 

sports contests as 

contests of skill. 

  Jan 18 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on 

Commerce and Labor & Sports 

at 1:30 PM. 

Ericksen 

SB 

5173 

Loss 

prevention 

reviews 

S State 

Governme 

1/16/20

17 

Concerning loss 

prevention reviews 

by state agencies. 

HB 1323(HState 

Governme) 

Jan 27 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on State 

Government at 8:00 AM. 

Chase 

SB 

5190 

Gambling/org. 

membership 

S Rules 2 1/23/20

17 

Concerning the 

member requirement 

for bona fide 

charitable or 

nonprofit 

organizations. 

HB 

1274(HRules R) 

Jan 19 Public hearing, executive 

action taken in the Senate 

Committee on Commerce, and 

Labor & Sports at 1:30 PM. 

Conway 

SB 

5207 

GPS data 

disclosure 

S State 

Governme 

1/17/20

17 

Concerning the 

public disclosure of 

global positioning 

system data 

corresponding to 

residential addresses 

of public employees 

and volunteers. 

HB 1317(HState 

Governme) 

Feb 1 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the Senate Committee 

on State Government at 8:00 

AM. (Subject to change) 

Kuderer 

SB 

5211 

Adjudicative 

proceedings 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/17/20

17 

Addressing 

adjudicative 

proceedings by state 

agencies. 

  Jan 24 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on Law & 

Justice at 10:00 AM. 

Wilson 



SB 

5214 

Admin rules 

review 

committee 

S State 

Governme 

1/17/20

17 

Adding 

responsibilities to the 

duties of the joint 

administrative rules 

review committee. 

  Jan 27 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on State 

Government at 8:00 AM. 

Wilson 

SB 

5218 

Arrest 

warrant/agency 

prop. 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/17/20

17 

Requiring 

notification to law 

enforcement of 

persons with an 

arrest warrant who 

are on public agency 

property. 

  Jan 24 Public hearing in the 

Senate Committee on Law & 

Justice at 10:00 AM. 

Zeiger 

SB 

5230 

Small business 

owners 

S Ways & 

Means 

1/30/20

17 

Concerning licensing 

and regulatory 

requirements of 

small business 

owners. 

HB 1352(HState 

Governme) 

Jan 26 Public hearing, executive 

action taken in the Senate 

Committee on Commerce, and 

Labor & Sports at 1:30 PM. 

Wilson 

SB 

5255 

Seizure & 

forfeiture 

reports 

S Ways & 

Means 

1/26/20

17 

Concerning seizure 

and forfeiture 

reporting. 

  Jan 25 Executive action taken in 

the Senate Committee on Law 

& Justice at 8:00 AM. 

Padden 

SB 

5276 

Retirement 

system opt-out 

S Ways & 

Means 

1/19/20

17 

Allowing new 

government 

employees the option 

of opting out of 

retirement system 

membership if the 

employee is age 

sixty or older when 

first hired, or when 

the employee's 

employer opts into 

retirement plan 

participation. 

HB 

1708(HApprops

) 

  Bailey 



SB 

5280 

Law 

enforcement/ha

te crime 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/19/20

17 

Making crimes and 

threats against 

persons because of 

their occupation as a 

law enforcement 

officer a hate crime. 

HB 

1398(HPublic 

Safety) 

Feb 2 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the Senate Committee 

on Law & Justice at 10:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Honeyford 

SB 

5312 

Criminal 

record/employ

ment 

S 

Com/Labo

r/Spor 

1/19/20

17 

Prohibiting certain 

employers from 

including any 

question on an 

application about an 

applicant's criminal 

record, inquiring 

either orally or in 

writing about an 

applicant's criminal 

records, or obtaining 

information from a 

criminal background 

check, until after the 

employer initially 

determines that the 

applicant is 

otherwise qualified. 

  Feb 1 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the Senate Committee 

on Commerce and Labor & 

Sports at 1:30 PM. (Subject to 

change) 

Baumgartner 

SB 

5326 

Law enf. & 

corr. 

information 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/20/20

17 

Regarding disclosure 

and use of personal 

information of 

employees and 

volunteers of law 

enforcement and 

employees and 

volunteers of the 

department of 

corrections. 

    Pearson 



SB 

5350 

Adjud. 

proceeding 

deadlines 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/20/20

17 

Establishing 

deadlines for final 

determinations and 

dispositions in 

agency adjudicative 

proceedings. 

  Feb 1 Scheduled for executive 

session in the Senate Committee 

on Law & Justice at 8:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Fortunato 

SB 

5372 

Audits finding 

noncompliance 

S State 

Governme

n 

1/20/20

17 

Addressing state 

audit findings of 

noncompliance with 

state law. 

  Feb 3 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the Senate Committee 

on State Government at 8:00 

AM. (Subject to change) 

Becker 

SB 

5374 

St. employee 

whistleblowers 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/20/20

17 

Concerning state 

employee 

whistleblower 

protection. 

  Feb 1 Scheduled for executive 

session in the Senate Committee 

on Law & Justice at 8:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Becker 

SB 

5418 

Sunshine 

committee 

S State 

Governme

n 

1/24/20

17 

Enacting 

recommendations of 

the sunshine 

committee. 

HB 1160(HState 

Governme) 

  Chase 

SB 

5429 

Law enf violent 

interactions 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/24/20

17 

Reducing the number 

of violent 

interactions between 

law enforcement 

officers and 

members of the 

public. 

  Feb 2 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the Senate Committee 

on Law & Justice at 10:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Pearson 

SB 

5443 

Fiscal notes S Ways & 

Means 

1/25/20

17 

Concerning fiscal 

notes. 

    Brown 

SB 

5455 

Cybersecurity 

performance 

S State 

Governme

n 

1/25/20

17 

Concerning 

statewide 

cybersecurity 

performance. 

  Feb 1 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the Senate Committee 

on State Government at 8:00 

AM. (Subject to change) 

Miloscia 



SB 

5479 

Shared parental 

leave 

S 

Com/Labo

r/Spor 

1/25/20

17 

Establishing a shared 

parental leave 

program. 

    SaldaÃ±a 

SB 

5495 

State retirement 

plans 

S Ways & 

Means 

1/26/20

17 

Addressing 

membership in state 

retirement plans 

prior to attaining the 

normal retirement 

age in another plan. 

    Hunt 

SB 

5506 

Firearms 

transfers/nonpr

ofit 

S Law & 

Justice 

1/26/20

17 

Concerning the 

transfer of firearms 

at nonprofit fund-

raising activities. 

  Jan 31 Scheduled for public 

hearing in the Senate Committee 

on Law & Justice at 10:00 AM. 

(Subject to change) 

Zeiger 

SB 

5511 

Tribal-state 

relations 

S State 

Governme 

1/26/20

17 

Concerning tribal-

state relations. 

HB 

1357(HComm 

Dev, Hous) 

  McCoy 

SB 

5572 

IT procurement 

oversight 

S State 

Governme

n 

1/30/20

17 

Providing oversight 

of the state 

procurement and 

contracting for 

information 

technology goods 

and services. 

HB 1787(HState 

Govt, El) 

  Hunt 

SB 

5582 

Gambling 

commission 

officers 

S 

Com/Labo

r/Spor 

1/30/20

17 

Clarifying the 

limited authority of 

gambling 

commission officers. 

HB 

1475(HJudiciary

) 

  Honeyford 

SB 

5588 

Racial 

disproportional

ity 

S 1st 

Reading 

1/30/20

17 

Developing 

information 

concerning racial 

disproportionality. 

    Hasegawa 

SB 

5616 

Adminstrative 

rules & policy 

    Limiting the 

enforcement of 

HB 1658(HState 

Govt, El) 

  Fortunato 



administrative rules 

and policies. 

 



Date Day of Week Day of Session

9 M 1 First day of session
10 T 2
11 W 3
12 Th 4
13 F 5
14 S 6
15 Su 7
16 M 8
17 T 9
18 W 10
19 Th 11
20 F 12
21 S 13
22 Su 14
23 M 15
24 T 16
25 W 17
26 Th 18
27 F 19
28 S 20
29 Su 21
30 M 22
31 T 23
1 W 24
2 Th 25
3 F 26
4 S 27
5 Su 28
6 M 29
7 T 30
8 W 31
9 Th 32
10 F 33
11 S 34
12 Su 35
13 M 36
14 T 37
15 W 38
16 Th 39
17 F 40 Policy Committee Cutoff
18 S 41
19 Su 42
20 M 43
21 T 44
22 W 45
23 Th 46
24 F 47 Fiscal Committee Cutoff
25 S 48
26 Su 49
27 M 50
28 T 51
1 W 52
2 Th 53
3 F 54
4 S 55
5 Su 56
6 M 57
7 T 58
8 W 59 House of Origin Cutoff
9 Th 60
10 F 61
11 S 62
12 Su 63
13 M 64
14 T 65
15 W 66
16 Th 67
17 F 68
18 S 69
19 Su 70
20 M 71
21 T 72
22 W 73
23 Th 74
24 F 75
25 S 76
26 Su 77
27 M 78
28 T 79
29 W 80 Policy Committee Cutoff - Opposite House
30 Th 81
31 F 82
1 S 83
2 Su 84
3 M 85
4 T 86 Fiscal Committee Cutoff - Opposite House
5 W 87
6 Th 88
7 F 89
8 S 90
9 Su 91
10 M 92
11 T 93
12 W 94 Opposite House Cutoff
13 Th 95
14 F 96
15 S 97
16 Su 98
17 M 99
18 T 100
19 W 101
20 Th 102
21 F 103
22 S 104
23 Su 105 Last day allowed for regular session under state constitution.

20
17

 S
es

si
on

 C
ut

of
f C

al
en

da
r January

March

April

February

After 5:00 p.m. on the 94th day, only initiatives and alternatives 
to initiatives, budgets and matters necessary to implement 
budgets, matters that affect state revenue, messages 
pertaining to amendments, matters of differences between the 
two houses, and matters incident to the interim and to the 
closing of the session may be considered.

The Governor has 5 days, 
excluding Sundays, to take action 
on any bill passed by the 
Legislature, provided 
adjournment does not occur 
within those 5 days.



Success of Online 
Transactions Rule
February 9, 2017

Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge
Licensing Unit



My Account

Launched May 2013
One payment: organization, 

employee apps
Renew licenses

Pay second-half payment
Submit activity reports

View filed reports



Rules Change
Adopted March 2015

Effective July 2015
Organizations, individual licensees required to 

submit online:
Renewal applications

Activity reports



Waiver 
Requirements

No access to Internet

No bank account

Bank unable to send EFTs



Online
61%

Paper
39%

Online
96%

Paper
4%

Individual License Renewals

Before Rule Change After Rule Change



Online
33%

Paper
67%

Online
80%

Paper
20%

Organization License Renewals

Before Rule Change After Rule Change



Online
87%

Paper
13%

Online
94%

Paper
6%

Organization Activity Reports

Before Rule Change After Rule Change



77.5% of non-profits are now submitting online

Processing with fewer staff

Convenient for licensees to meet deadlines

Licensees can print licenses

Agency cost reduction

Rule Change Impacts



Success of Online 
Transactions Rule
February 9, 2017

Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge
Licensing Unit


	Commission Packet
	Agenda
	Tab 1 Minutes
	Tab 1 Licenses 
	Tab 1 Legislative Memo
	Opposition Letter
	Bill Tracker
	Cutoff Calendar
	Tab 2 Success of Online Transactions Rule



